
Aurora City Council Agenda October 11, 2016 Page 1 of 2 
  

AGENDA 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, October 11, 2016, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 

21420 Main Street NE, Aurora, OR 97002 
 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE AURORA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
  

2. CITY RECORDER DOES ROLL CALL 
 Mayor Bill Graupp 
 Councilor Jason Sahlin 
 Councilor Tom Heitmanek 
 Councilor Bob Southard 
 Councilor Kris Sallee 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
a) City Council Minutes – September, 2016 
b) Planning Commission – August, 2016 
c) Historic Review Board Meeting Minutes – NA,  

 
4. CORRESPONDENCE –  

• Wave Broadband Rate Adjustment Notice 
• Keizer Law Name Change and Restructure Notice 
• DeFazio Letter  

 
 

5. VISITOR 
 

 Anyone wishing to address the Aurora City Council concerning items not already on the 
 meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the Aurora 
 City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 
  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING 
a) Discussion and or Action on Proposed LA-16-01 Text Amendment to Remove the 1000 Foot 

Buffer Between Marijuana Businesses in the Industrial Zone.  
 

7. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayors Report 
b) Planning 



Aurora City Council Agenda October 11, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
  

c) Public Safety 
d) Finance Officer 
e) Public Works 
f) Parks Committee 
g) City Recorder 
h) City Attorney 

 
 
 

8. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
a) Resolution Number 716 A Resolution to Add City of Gervais to IGA for Court Judge Services.  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Discussion and or Action of Resolution Number 716 and the Addendum to the IGA for Court 

Judge Services.  
 

10. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a) Discussion on Employee Manual 
b) Discussion on Council Procedures 
c) Discussion and or Action on Code Chapter 8 Noxious Vegetation  

 
11. FUTURE TOPICS 

a)  
12. ADJOURN 

 
  



Council Minutes  September 2016 Page 1of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

Minutes 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday,September 13, 2016, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 

21420 Main Street NE, Aurora, OR 97002 

STAFF PRESENT: Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 
Mary Lambert, Finance Officer 
Darrel Lockard, Public Works Superintendent 
Officer Bell, Marion County 
Eleanor Beatty, Kaiser Law 
Linda Kendrick,Kaiser law 

STAFF ABSENT: Dennis Koho, City Attorney has resigned 

VISITORS PRESENT: 

1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Meeting was called to order by Mayor Bill Graupp at 7:00 pm

2. CITY RECORDER DOES ROLL CALL
Mayor William Graupp- Present
Councilor Jason Sahlin - Present
Councilor Kris Sallee-Present
Councilor Robert Southard-Present
Councilor Tom Heitmanek - Present

3. CONSENT AGENDA
a) City Council Meeting Minutes – August,2016
b) Planning Commission – July, 2016
c) Historic Review Board Meeting – July, 2016

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  September 2016 Page 2of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

ACTION ITEM: NA 
  

Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented was made by Councilor Southard and is 
seconded by Councilor Heitmanek.  Motion approved by all.  

 
 
 

4. CORRESPONDENCE –  
a) Congratulations letter from Oregon State Parks and Recreation Regarding the CLG Grant For 

Historic Properties.  
 

  Action Item: NA.  
 
Councilor Sallee at this time asks for the process and procedure for addressing visitors concerns that are 
brought up during a meeting. She is concerned because they are not on the agenda for this month for 
council to discuss them. During a lot of discussion and clarification it was the consensus of the council 
that staff would address the issues in the form of a report to the council at which point council would 
decide if it needed to be on the agenda as an agenda item.  
 
During this time council also discuss the procedure for new business to be brought to the council for 
discussion. The request would need to be in writing to the recorder’s office at least 10 day prior in order 
for staff to respond. At which point it would go on agenda as correspondence at which point council 
would then decide if it needs to become a new business item on the agenda at the next month’s meeting. 
  
 
A motion is made by Councilor Southard and seconded by Councilor Sahlin to have citizen concerns 
brought to council during visitors section as a staff report item as a bullet when it will be discussed. 
Passed by All.  
 
 
Councilor Sahlin makes a motion and is seconded by Councilor Heitmanek to have information in the city 
newsletter at least twice a year informing citizens where to look for information. Passed by all.  
 

5. VISITORS 
 

 Anyone wishing to address the Aurora City Council concerning items not already on the 
 meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the Aurora 
 City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 
 

• No one speaks at this time.  
   

6. REPORTS 
 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  September 2016 Page 3of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

a) Mayor Bill Graupp informs council he has been teaching some Economic Development 
classes on the general fund budgeting process, additionally going to teach some on civics for 
a class of 3rd graders on if I were Mayor for a day and how a name gets on the ballot. The 
PAM meeting went well that is Positive Airport Meeting, with Marion County, the sheriff’s 
office and airport owners. There were really no agenda items other than an update however 
the FAA did comments on the possible 3 violations regarding vehicles on a taxiway. Also 
discussed was the accident on Butteville Rd and how that is close to Airport Rd issues which 
resulted in discussion of additional traffic studies.  

 
Council discussed. NA 
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 

 
b) Planning, there was a public hearing regarding the new building proposal for the Historic 

Society. There was discussion regarding upcoming code revisions. Councilor Sallee did 
question as to whom is responsible when it is a tenant property it is always the property 
owner’s responsibility.  There is also a discussion regarding pg 11 of the Planning minutes 
referencing the conditions of approval.  

 
ACTION ITEM: NA 

c) Public Safety, Officer Bell introduces to council the Sergeant in charge of contracts 
that took Bill Sherburn place. His name is Don Parise who is in charge of the 
following contracts;  

• City of Aurora - Full time 
• City of Sublimity - Full time 
• City of Jefferson - Full time 
• City of Donald - Part time 
• City of St. Paul - Part time 
• City of Detroit - Part time 

o Office Bell informs Councilors that he has been seeing a lot more transient activity in 
the area and is keeping an eye on the situations.  

o Mayor Graupp informs councilors he had learned that if a car is parked in front of a 
mail box they will not leave the mail that day. City Recorder Richardson explains 
that there are a lot of issues regarding the mail which at some point council may 
need to look into. The most recent was an issue on Main Street and the discussions 
with the property owner went very well. Councilor Sallee had no topics to discuss.  

 
Council discussed, NA 
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 
 

d) Finance,  

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  September 2016 Page 4of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

• Report attached is going well normal activity.  
• Report on citizen Sallee do you have any questions. Moving forward it is agreed that 

citizen concerns be a bullet during the Departments report area on the agenda so the 
public is aware there concern is being addressed or at least spoken about.  

 
 
Council discussed the need for a disclaimer on the decision notice that would inform the 
public there could be additional invoices received. They also discuss the relevance of 
providing back up documents with the billing invoices.  
 
A motion is made by Councilor Sallee that a disclaimer be a part of the staff 
report/decision that indicates there could be additional billings and to check with the 
city and is seconded by Councilor Sahlin. Passed by All.  
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 
 

e) Public Works 
• Report is attached Lockard informs council that contracted services is almost 

exhausted because of the amount of leaks that have been repaired.  
• Councilor Sahlin asks for update on the Storm Water Master Plan there is continued 

work being done.  
• More discussion regarding tree removal in and around the park.  

 
Council discussed, the recent application received and approved for a restaurant along 
99E and the impacts that could cause regarding city services. What system development 
charges are and how they can be used. Also discussed is the fact that there is no water 
currently supplied to the park shelters.  

 
ACTION ITEM:  
 

f) Parks Committee 
Councilor Sahlin really doesn’t  have a lot to say other than the bases for the ball field 
have been put away.  
ACTION ITEM: Tennis nets.  
 

g) City Recorder 
• Report as attached currently 2 pending records requests 

 
Council discussed, contact cards and city council emails in the newsletter.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Update the contact cards, and put the elected officials email address in the 
city newsletter.  
 

h) City Attorney 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  September 2016 Page 5of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

• City Attorney report, Dennis Koho has resigned as the city attorney.  
• Nothing has been filed as of yet from Ross RV Cart.  
• Mr. Bixler had requested that his performance bond be released and it was the 

consensus of the council to move in that direction at the successful closing of the 
property.  
 
Council discussed Whether or not they should go out for bid for City Attorney since 
Linda Kendrick had been working so closely with Dennis the past 6 months they Mayor 
felt we were still in good hands. Some of the other councilors thought it a good idea but 
there was no movement at this time to start the process. They did agree to discuss it at 
the next council meeting.  
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 
 
 

 
7. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 715 A Resolution to Increase Garbage 

Disposal Rates.  
 
Motion to approve Resolution Number 715 and accept the proposed disposal rate change is 
made by Councilor Sahlin and is seconded by Councilor Heitmanek. Motion Passed by all.  

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Republic Services Rate Increase, Jason Jordon, Therese McClain, 

and Republic Services rate increase presentation, Marion County rate increase 29.6 at the 
burner, asking for disposal increase, 11.8 percent cost inflation. County has speared a 
subcommittee for waste disposal concerns. Mayor Graupp for the burner what is a ratio of 
57% for recycle. This is really a pass through increase because of the increase that Marion 
County has imposed.   

b) Discussion and or Action on AMC Chapter 8 Noxious Vegetation. (old business for next 
month) 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS  

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Employee Manual 
b) Discussion and or Action on Council Procedures.  

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/


Council Minutes  September 2016 Page 6of 6 

For further information on any of these discussion topics please refer to the recording on the website. www.ci.aurora.or.us 

 

10. ADJOURN,  
 

 Mayor Graupp adjourned the February 09, 2016 Council Meeting at 10:00 PM.  
 

 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kelly Richardson, CMC 
City Recorder 
 

 
 

http://www.ci.aurora.or.us/






































LA-2016-01 City Council staff report   1 

 

Memorandum 

MID-WILLAMETTE VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
105 HIGH STREET S. E. SALEM, OREGON 97301-3667 

TELEPHONE: (503)588-6177                           FAX:  (503)588-6094 
 
 

TO:   Aurora City Commission   

FROM: Renata Wakeley, City Planner 

RE: Legislative Amendment 2016-01 (LA-16-01) 

DATE:  October 5, 2016 

 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The City Council’s options for taking action on Legislative Amendment 16-01 include the 

following:   

 

A. Adopt the findings in the staff report and adopt Legislative Amendment 16-01: 

1. As presented by staff and recommended by the Planning Commission; or 

2. As amended by the City Council (stating revisions). 

 

B. Take no action on Legislative Amendment 16-01. 

 

C. Continue the public hearing: 

1. To a time-certain, or  

2. Indefinitely. 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

In January 2016, the Aurora City Council adopted Ordinance 480 amending the Commercial and 

Industrial zone codes to adopt reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions on marijuana 

related businesses, including a restriction on marijuana grow sites and/or processing sites 

requiring a 1000-foot buffer between other marijuana businesses (established at the time of initial 

permit application). 

 

The public hearings and staff reports related to the adoption of Ordinance 480 can be found in 

file #LA-2015-01. 

 

On August 18, 2016, the City of Aurora received an application to amend the Industrial zone 

code (Section 16.16) to remove the 1,000-foot buffer requirement between marijuana businesses 

(See Exhibit B). 

 

The following sections of the Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) are proposed for amendment: 

 16.16 Industrial  

 



LA-2016-01 City Council staff report   2 

 

Legislative Amendment 16-01 includes the draft code amendments to the Aurora Municipal 

Code. The revisions are attached in a bold and strikethrough format for review purposes (see 

Exhibit A).   

 

 

FINDING OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff and the Aurora Planning Commission, after careful consideration of the testimony and 

evidence in the record, adopted the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions: 

 

1. In accordance with the post-acknowledgement plan amendment process set forth in 

Oregon Revised Statute 197.610(1), the City Planner submitted the draft proposed 

amendments to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development on 

September 12, 2016, 23-days prior to the first evidentiary hearing and 30-days prior to the 

City Council hearing tentatively scheduled for October 11, 2016.  

2. Amendments to the Aurora Municipal Code, Comprehensive Plan, and/or Maps are 

considered Legislative Amendments subject to 16.80.20. Staff finds the application is 

subject to section 16.80.020 as a Legislative Amendment as the applicant proposes a 

change to the Industrial zone code for all industrial properties within the City of Aurora 

that applies to a broad class of people and a variety of factual situations and any change 

would be an expression of local government policy rather than a closely circumscribed 

factual situation or a relatively small number of impacted parties. As such, legislative 

amendment application shall be processed in accordance with the procedures and 

standards set forth in AMC 16.74-Procedures for Decision Making-Legislative. A 

legislative application may be approved or denied. 

3. AMC 16.74.030 outlines notice requirements. At least ten days prior to the first public 

hearing, the City shall publish notice in a newspaper of general circulation. The notice of 

the planning commission and city council hearings was published in the Canby Herald on 

September 21, 2016, at least 10 days prior to the scheduled October 4, 2016 Planning 

Commission hearing. In addition, owners of industrially zoned properties within the 

Aurora urban growth boundary were mailed notice of the pending application on 

September 21, 2016. 

4. Proposed amendments for consideration of legislative changes to the provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan, implementing ordinances and maps are a legislative action. Section 

16.74 calls for amendments to the Development Code to be processed as a 

recommendation by the Planning Commission and the decision by the City Council.  

5. AMC 16.74.060 includes the standards for decision of Legislative Amendments as 

outlined under FINDINGS below. 

6. The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed legislative amendments at their 

October 4, 2016 public hearing and recommended the City Council adopt LA-2016-01 

after their October 11, 2016 public hearing via a vote of 5-1. 

 

 

FINDINGS 

In accordance with 16.74.060.A., the recommendation by the Planning Commission and the decision by 

the Council shall be based on consideration of the following factors: 



LA-2016-01 City Council staff report   3 

 

1. Any applicable statewide planning goals and guidelines adopted under Oregon 

Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 197; 

 

FINDINGS: Goal 1, Citizen Involvement: A public hearing on the proposed amendments is 

schedule before the Planning Commission on October 4, 2016 and a second hearing is scheduled 

before the City Council on October 11, 2016. Notice was posted at City Hall and published in the 

Canby Herald. Owners of industrially zoned properties within the Aurora urban growth boundary 

were mailed notice of the pending application on September 21, 2016. The staff report was 

available for review one week prior to the Planning Commission and City Council hearings. This 

is consistent with City procedures. Staff and the Planning Commission found Goal 1 is met. 

 

Goal 2, Land Use Planning: The proposal does not involve exceptions to the Statewide Goals. 

Adoption actions are consistent with the acknowledged AMC for processing of legislative 

amendment applications to the zoning ordinance. Goal 2 generally supports clear and thorough 

local procedures. Staff and the Planning Commission found Goal 2 is met. 

 

Goal 3, Agricultural Lands and Goal 4, Forest lands are found not to be applicable. 

 

Goal 5, Open Spaces, Natural Resources, and Historic Areas: The proposed amendments do not 

affect regulations within the Aurora Historic District nor does it affect open spaces or natural 

resources. Goal 5 does not apply.   

 

Goal 6, Air, Water and Land Resource Quality: Goal 6 is not applicable. The proposal does not 

address Goal 6 resources.  

 

Goal 7, Natural Hazards: Goal 7 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 7 

resources.  

 

Goal 8, Recreational Needs: Goal 8 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 8 

resources. 

 

Goal 9, Economic Development: The draft code amendments responds to an application received 

from a tenant on an industrially zoned property. According to the applicant, the removal of the 

1000-foot buffer from other marijuana related businesses would benefit the City’s economic 

development by increasing potential city revenue via increased business and potential taxation 

and would promote employment and business opportunities in the industry. Staff and the 

Planning Commission found Goal 9 is met. 

 

Goal 10, Housing: Goal 10 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 10 resources.  

 

Goal 11, Public Facilities and Services: Goal 11 is not applicable. The proposal does not address 

Goal 11 issues. 

 

Goal 12, Transportation: Goal 12 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 12 

issues. 



LA-2016-01 City Council staff report   4 

 

 

Goal 13, Energy Conservation: Goal 13 is not applicable as the code amendments address 

permitted uses under State law on properties already zoned for industrial development. The 

proposal does not address Goal 13 resources.  

 

Goal 14, Urbanization: Goal 14 is not applicable. The proposal does not address Goal 14 issues 

as the proposed code amendment applies to existing industrially zoned properties within the City 

limits and permissible uses within these zones. 

 

ORS 197 does not include specific notice requirements for legislative processes but the City met 

all noticing requirements under AMC for Legislative Amendments. ORS 227.186, more 

commonly known as Measure 56 notice, does not apply as the proposed amendment does not 

reduce permissible uses of properties in the affected zones. Owners of industrially zoned 

properties within the Aurora urban growth boundary were mailed notice of the pending 

application on September 21, 2016. 

 

2. Any federal or state statutes or rules found applicable; 

 

FINDINGS: Staff finds the adoption actions are consistent with Oregon Revised Statute 

197.610(1) for notice to the Department of Land Conservation and Development. Measure 56 

notice was not required as the proposed amendments do not reduce permissible uses on industrial 

lands. Notice of the proposed code amendment was mailed to all industrial zoned property within 

the urban growth boundary.  

 

Beyond the State-imposed and regulated standards for marijuana related facilities, jurisdictions 

are permitted to adopt reasonable time, place and manner restrictions to meet the intent of their 

development code and comprehensive plans. Proposed amendments to address these new 

regulations and to further clarify the locations of specific facilities were adopted via Ordinance 

480 and include buffers from schools and daycares; prohibiting marijuana related businesses 

from being adjacent to residential zones, parks or churches; limiting hours of operation; and 

requiring a conditional use permit application and approval.  

 

According to the applicant, the additional requirement for a 1000-foot buffer between marijuana 

related businesses is unnecessary as it does not provide additional protections against security 

threats nor does it maintain higher livability standards for residents. The applicant also states the 

AMC already contains fair and thoughtful provisions to safeguard the City’s livability and limits 

the marijuana industries footprint upon the City via other conditional use permit criteria and 

because of the State of Oregon’s existing security standards, the AMC buffer requirement is 

unnecessary.   

 

Staff and the Planning Commission found the City may amend the Industrial zone code to 

remove the 1000-foot buffer requirement and still meet applicable state statutes related to 

marijuana grow and processing sites and this criterion is met. 

  

3. The applicable comprehensive plan policies and map; and 



LA-2016-01 City Council staff report   5 

 

 

The applicable Aurora Comprehensive Plan Goals align with the Statewide Planning Goals and 

associated policies as outlined under FINDINGS, subsection A.1 above. Staff and the Planning 

Commission found the proposed amendment to the industrial zone code can meet this criteria, as 

outlined under subsection A.1 above.  

 

4. The applicable provisions of the implementing ordinances. 

 

FINDINGS: The draft code amendment responds to request from a property owner and tenant of 

industrially zoned property. The proposed code amendment is not found to deter employment or 

business opportunity but rather to clarify locations of a permitted conditional use in the industrial 

zone and allow for greater economic uses of industrial properties while maintaining the permitted 

and conditional uses in the zone, and the zone development and design standards. 

 

Staff and the Planning Commission found the proposed code amendment can be adopted in 

compliance with the implementing ordinances as the proposed code amendment does not 

proposed to amend the development or design standards of the applicable zone or other 

requirements of the Aurora Municipal Code. Staff and the Planning Commission found this 

criterion is met. 

 

In accordance with 16.74.060.B., consideration may also be given to proof of a substantial 

change in circumstances, a mistake, or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan or implementing 

ordinance which is the subject of the application.  

 

FINDINGS: Staff and the Planning Commission found there was no change in circumstance, 

mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan or implementing ordinances. Rather, the 

proposed code amendment is a result of an application for zone text amendment from Lovena 

Green Farms.  In accordance with AMC 16.74.020.A.5, an owner of property or contract 

purchaser may apply for a zone code text amendment. The application is signed by the property 

owner of record. Staff and the Planning Commission found this criterion does not apply.   

 

 

EXHIBIT A  Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) section 16.16- Industrial zone code proposed 

amendments 

EXHIBIT B Zoning Ordinance Amendment application 

 













































 

1 

 

City Recorder Report 

Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Kelly Richardson 

CC: None 

Date: 10/5/2016 

Re: Recorders Report Month of September 2016 report 

Activities and ongoing projects are as follows: 

 Ongoing secretarial duties for the City Council and Planning and Historic Review Board, along 
with attending the meetings once a month.  

 .  

 Attending Conference Committee And Records Committee Meetings 

 Records Request update  

  0 pending request  

 Ongoing needs of the City, discussion items.  

 Working on various items requested from last month meeting 

o Council Procedures samples 

o Employee manual 

o IGA List  

 Working on various code violations; 

o 0 Letters went out in September  

 Working on finalization of Election Documents.   

 Updating of website pages 

 Working on analyzing various procedures.   



RESOLUTION NUMBER 716 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN ADDENDUM TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT FOR JUDICIAL SERVICES AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 
SIGN THE AGREEMENT AND AMMENDS RESOLUTION 691. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Aurora has secured the services of a Court Judge; and 

WHEREAS, that same Judge provides services to other cities in the area; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has made it clear it’s intent to have the Judge serve the City on a 
contractual basis, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

AURORA THAT: the City Council adopts the attached Inter-Governmental Agreement 

Addendum; and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign 

the Agreement/Addendum. 

 
ADOPTED by the Aurora City Council at a City Council meeting held on Tuesday, 

October 11, 2016, and is effective upon passage. 
 

Dated this: 11th day of October, 2016 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
 
 

Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City Attorney 

 
__________________________________ 

Kelly Richardson, CMC City Recorder 

 
 
 
 

Resolution Number 716 
A Resolution to Approve an Inter-Governmental Agreement and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Agreement 
Page 1of l 
City Council Meeting, October 11, 2016 



ADDENDUM TO 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 

 
 

This is an addendum to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for Municipal Judge that was 
entered into, by and between the City of Hubbard, the City of Aurora, the City of Silverton, and 
the City of Mt. Angel, all of which are municipal corporations (the “Parties” or “Cities”). 
 
The purpose of this addendum is to amend only certain sections of the original IGA to include 
the City of Gervais. 
 
In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to 
the amendments as set forth below. 
 

WITNESSED 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hubbard, Aurora, Silverton, Mt. Angel and Gervais have 
appointed Lori Coukoulis as either Municipal Judge or Municipal Judge Pro-tem; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained, herein the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Lori Coukoulis shall perform the duties of either Municipal Judge or Municipal Court 
Judge Pro-Tem as an independent contractor for the cities of Hubbard, Aurora, 
Silverton, Mt. Angel and Gervais as long as each individual city desires her to do so.  
Any city may remove Lori Coukoulis from her position without affecting her position 
with the other cities or the remainder of this agreement. 

 
The Agreement as hereby amended shall take effect when it is signed by two parties and shall 
remain in effect as long as at least two parties that have signed the Agreement retain Lori 
Coukoulis as Municipal Court Judge or Municipal Court Judge Pro-Tem.  Except as expressly 
modified by this amendment, the terms, conditions, covenants and performances of the 
Agreement shall remain unchanged and are hereby ratified and confirmed as being in full force 
and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Cities have caused this amendment to the Intergovernmental 
Agreement for Municipal Judge be signed and executed.  Signed by the City of Gervais this 6th 
day of October, 2016. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



_______________________________  _____________________________ 
City of Hubbard     City of Mt. Angel 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
City of Aurora      City of Silverton 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
 
_______________________________   
City of Gervais 
 
_______________________________   
Title 
 
 
 
 



    8.08.120 Trees, shrubs and bushes. 
    A.  No owner or person in charge of property shall permit trees, shrubs, bushes, or other vegetation on 
their property to interfere with street or sidewalk traffic or with overhead utility lines. 
    B.   It shall be the duty of an owner or person in charge of property abutting the right-of-way of an 
opened public street or a sidewalk to: 
    1.   Keep all trees and shrubs on the premises trimmed so that any overhanging portions are at least 
eight feet above the sidewalk if it exists, or at least twelve (12) feet above the vehicular travel surface; 
    2.   Keep tree limbs from blocking stop signs, street signs, or other signs; 
    3.   Keep shrubs from growing out over the sidewalk or curb; and 
    4.   Keep all vegetation within the vision clearance area specified for traffic safety in the zoning 
ordinance, or by the city police department, no more than three feet above the street level. 
    C.   No owner or person in charge of property shall allow a dead or decaying tree stand that is a hazard 
to the public or to persons or property on or near the site of the hazardous tree. It shall be the duty of an 
owner or person in charge of property that abuts upon a public right-of-way to contact the city public 
works department and follow the city’s instructions prior to trimming or removal of any tree in the right-
of-way adjacent to that property. (Ord. 396 § 12, 1999) 
 
    8.08.130 Noxious vegetation. 
    A.  As used in this section, the term "noxious vegetation" means vegetation left unmanaged which 
creates traffic visibility problems at intersections or poses a threat of conflagration that may endanger the 
safety and welfare of the community. Noxious vegetation includes: 
    1.   Poison oak, poison ivy, night shade, and tansy; 
    2.   Blackberry bushes, except when maintained as prescribed in subsection B of this section; 
    3.   Any vegetation, including grass and weeds that: 
    a.   Poses a fire hazard because it is dry and more than ten (10) inches high; and within one hundred 
(100) feet of a structure or opened public right-of-way, or within thirty (30) feet of other types of 
combustibles, 
    b.   Encroaches onto an opened public right-of-way or across a property line, 
    c.   Poses a traffic hazard because it impairs the view of a public thoroughfare or otherwise makes use 
of the thoroughfare hazardous, 
    d.   Creates an unsafe area to which children may be attracted, 
    e.   Is used for habitation by trespassers, or 
    f.    Harbors rodents or other animals that pose a health threat to humans. 
    B.   The term "noxious vegetation" does not include vegetation that constitutes an agricultural crop 
unless that vegetation is determined to be a health, fire, or traffic hazard as defined above. 
    C.   It shall be the duty of the owner or person in charge of property to cut down or destroy any noxious 
vegetation as often as needed to prevent the health and safety hazards described above. 
    D.  No owner or person in charge of property abutting the right-of-way of an opened street or public 
sidewalk (whether part of a street easement or right-or-way or located on public land) shall permit 
vegetation to interfere with adjacent street or sidewalk traffic. In addition, vegetation shall not be 
permitted to impair the view of a public thoroughfare, extend into the sight triangle at any intersection, or 
otherwise make use of a thoroughfare hazardous. It shall be the duty of an owner or person in charge of 
such property to keep all vegetation trimmed so that any overhanging portions are at least twelve (12) feet 
above the vehicular travel surface (roadway). No person shall maintain vegetation in an opened public 
right-of-way within five feet of the travel surface, which hinders pedestrian traffic adjacent to the 
roadway, provided that the trimming or removal of trees on public property, easements or rights-of-way 
shall be the responsibility of the city. (Ord. 396 § 13, 1999) 
 
 
 
 


	1 agenda-council-october-2016
	2 minutes-council-october-2016
	3 minutes-pc-september-2016
	4 Wave Rate Increase
	5 Keizer Law Letter
	5a 2016-09-15 Ltr DeFazio to NMFS 2p
	6 LA-16-01 CC staff report_FINAL
	7 Exhibit A
	8 Exhibit B
	9 Finance report
	10 public works report
	11 City Recorder Report September 2016- - Copy
	12 Resolution Number 716-Court Judge
	13 Addendum to Judge IGA
	14 Noxious vegetation

